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Description

Norwood is a rural estate located in the vicinity of Sandy Spring in Montgomery County. The property contains a large eighteenth-
century Georgian residence, a carriage house/artist's studio, a barn, several outbuildings, and the remains of a boxwood maze. The
11.2 acre tract of land lies east of the intersection of Dr. Bird Road (MD 182) and Norwood Road.

The main house is sited to the south toward Dr. Bird Road. The two-and-one-half-story, side-gable, brick structure is eight bays
wide and two bays deep and forms a rectangular footprint, which is comprised of the original late eighteenth-century dwelling and
a mid nineteenth-century linear addition,

The late eighteenth-century portion is the five bay wide west section, which contains the primary entrance; the linear addition to the
east of the original structure was constructed circa 1867 (MIHP Form M: 28-13). The original section features a Flemish-bond
brick pattern distinguished from the nineteenth-century addition laid in common bond. A brick belt course separates the first and
second stories of the original west section.
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.Wide, gable-end, brick chimneys rise from the east and west gables and an interior brick chimney rises from the ridge at the
juncture of the original dwelling and the later addition. Corbelled arches cap the chimneys. The roof is covered in standing-seam
metal, which is punctuated by three evenly-spaced, gabled dormers on the south slope and a single dormer on the north roof slope.

The main entrance is located within an arched and pedimented portico, which is centered on the fagade of the original portion of
the dwelling and reached by a flight of poured-concrete steps. Two round wood columns and two engaged columns support the
portico’s roof, which is clad in standing-seam metal. Wooden benches are located between the porch supports and mimic the look
of a balustrade. The entry features a paneled, wood door behind a modern storm door. Decorative leaded sidelights flank the door
and a leaded elliptical fanlight tops the door.

Secondary entries are located on the side and rear elevations. A set of side entry doors are located on the north and south bays of
the west elevation. The wood-frame storm doors are glazed and protect the multi-pane entry door. These entries are sheltered by a
first-story, shed-roof porch, which is supported by four round, wood columns. Flights of wooden steps reach the porch on the
north and south ends.

A set of identical side entry doors are also located on the east elevation. However, these multi-pane wooden doors are not
sheltered by a porch roof and are reached by flights of wooden steps and landings with wooden balustrades. This same entry
configuration is located on the westernmost bay of the rear (north) elevation of the circa-1867 addition. Similar to the main entry
on the fagade, a pedimented portico extends from the central bay of the rear elevation of the original dwelling. The rear portico is
fully enclosed by wood panels, pilasters, and multi-pane glazing and topped by a standing-seam metal roof. It is reached by a
flight of poured-concrete steps.

Fenestration is hung singly in a symmetrical arrangement throughout the building, which consists of six-over-six, double-hung,
wood-sash windows on all elevations, including the pairs of attic windows that pierce the gables. Operable, louvered, wood
shutters flank the attic windows and the windows on the second story; likewise, operable, paneled, wood shutters flank the
.windows on the first story. Intact iron shutter stops are extant on the building. Jack arches crown the first-story windows on the
fagade, while windows on the upper stories and side and rear elevations are crowned by flat, brick lintels composed of headers,

Historic outbuildings on the property include a small frame bank barn with a metal gable roof, weatherboard siding, an extended
forebay, and a stone foundation; a granary with a cross-gable roof and weatherboard siding supported by brick piers; a wood frame
shed; and a carriage house/artist's studio with a modern two-car garage addition. The property also contains the remains of a
historic boxwood maze and modern in-ground pool.

History and Significance

Norwood is located a mile south of Sandy Spring, a village in eastern Montgomery County. The name "Sandy Spring" historically
denoted two places: a hundred-square-mile neighborhood dating to the 1750s and the village that developed by 1817. The site of
the area's namesake, a spring that bubbled up through a patch of sand, is commemorated by a concrete structure.

European settlement in Sandy Spring began in the eighteenth century. In 1743, Richard Snowden, a Quaker land speculator and
owner of the Patuxent Iron Works, purchased a tract including the area that became Sandy Spring. Two of Snowden's daughters,
Deborah and Elizabeth, married James Brooke and John Thomas, respectively, and built homes in the area in 1728, John and
Elizabeth Thomas's house, Clifton, which replaced an earlier log structure built by the couple, still stands (MIHP M: 15-41).
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John and Elizabeth's son, Richard Thomas, became a prominent community leader. Thomas was one of nine men who met at
Hungerford's Tavern in Rockville on June 11, 1774 to vote to support the people of Boston in defying the Stamp Act. He was also
a delegate to both the 1774 and 1775 Provincial Conventions, during which Marylanders decided their colony's course of action in
the lead up to the Revolutionary War (Lehman). Later in life, Thomas was involved in the creation of Montgomery County and
founded the community of Brookeville,

Thomas left behind an architectural legacy in the form of four homes he purportedly built in the Sandy Spring area: Cherry Grove
in 1773 (MIHP M:28-9), Woodlawn in 1774 (MIHP M:28-14), Mt. Airy in 1799 (MIHP M:28-3), and Norwood. Cherry Grove
was Thomas's birth place and served as his home after he constructed a brick structure on the property. Thomas built Mount Airy
for his daughter Sarah and her husband (Lehman). Located across the fields from Norwood, Thomas's son Samuel lived at
Woodlawn. Of the homes attributed to Thomas, Norwood is the only one that is believed to have not housed a member of
Thomas's family upon its completion.

Originally named "Pretty Prospect," Norwood was erected on land that Richard Snowden conveyed to William Richardson, for
whom Thomas is believed to have built the home (Lehman). The cast-iron fireback of a fireplace in one of Norwood's bedrooms
bears the letters "R" and "S" with a heart between them. Below are the letters "S" and "T" and the date of 1751. Researchers have
interpreted the 1751 date as the year Norwood was built. The fireback's lettering has been explained as the initials of Richard
Thomas and his wife Sarah (Farquhar).

Questions arise over the date of Norwood's origin. Thomas did not gain possession of the property until 1768. Records do not
indicate whether there was a house already on the property when Thomas took possession. Tax records do not describe "a brick
house 30 by 40 feet" fitting Norwood's description until 1783 (2006 Sandy Spring Museum Homes Tour). Given that Thomas
built the other homes attributed to him for himself and his children, it is unlikely that he would erect Norwood in 1751, at a time
when he did not own the property, for the benefit of a non-family member. Moreover, it is doubtful that Richard Thomas would
have installed a fireback with his and his wife's initials in a home that Thomas would not own for another seventeen years.

. Questions arise over the fireback as well. The fireback, cited as proof of the house's date of construction, has also been explained
as bearing the trademark of Richard Snowden's ironworks. If so, the fireback neither bears Norwood's date of construction nor the
initials of Thomas and his wife. An iron plate cast with the same trademark, but with the date "1737" instead of "1751," hangs on
the wall of Reynolds Tavern in Annapolis (MIHP AA-402; see Sandy Spring Museum Vertical File "Norwood"). As a result,
Norwood was probably not built in 1751 but rather at some point between Thomas's acquisition of the property in 1768 and the
first recorded description of the house in 1783.

Sandy Spring continued to develop during the period of Norwood's establishment. In 1753, the Thomas and Brooke families
founded the Sandy Spring Friends Meeting. While many eighteenth-century communities formed around a commercial core,
Sandy Spring evolved from the local Quaker meeting house. The meeting house, located a mile from Norwood, served as both a
spiritual and community center. The third structure built on the site, erected in 1817, remains standing (MIHP: 28-11-5). By
1819, a blacksmith shop, post office, and general store had opened in the village (Farquhar).

Meanwhile, Richard Thomas deeded Norwood to his grandson, Samuel Thomas III, in 1799 for "one dollar and love and affection
(Liber H, Folio 410; Montgomery County land records). In tumn, Samuel sold to his cousin, Philip Evan Thomas, who owned the
property until 1832. Philip was the first president of the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad and is regarded as the father of the
American railways (Brugger, 203). The Thomas Viaduct, which carries the CSX railroad over the Patapsco River, is named after
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.7im (MIHP BA-143).

After a series of owners, Norwood passed to Joseph P. Moore in 1867. Moore owned the property until 1920, longer than any
other person in Norwood's history. After working several years as a New York City banker, Moore moved back to Sandy Spring
where he had been raised. Moore rose to prominence in his hometown, serving as the director of Sandy Spring's Mutual Insurance
Company and as a state senator from 1882 to 1886 (Lehman; Maryland State Archives, Historical Senate List). He built an
addition to Norwood's east end and added a carriage house. An extensive English boxwood maze, the origins of which are
unknown, was present when Moore bought the home (2006 Sandy Spring Museum Homes Tour). Remnants of the maze are found
near the house's east side.

The property then passed to Moore's youngest daughter, Margaret C. Bancroft. Margaret's husband, the accomplished artist Milton
Bancroft, lived at Norwood from 1919 to his death in 1947. Milton was a student of the Beaux Arts school. He painted several
large murals for the Columbian Exposition in 1893 and San Francisco's Panama Pacific Exposition in 1915. Among his prolific
works were several World War I recruiting posters, examples of which are on display at the United States Navy Museum
(Davenport's Art Reference). He worked out of a studio in the loft of the carriage house Joseph Moore had added.

Norwood stayed within the Bancroft family until 1978. An advertisement for the Bancroft's estate sale reflected the past two-
hundred years of Norwood's history. The advertisement offered "many old large pieces of furniture," "Sen. Moore's personal desk
over 150 yrs. old" as well as the contents of Milton's studio, including a "large studio easel, small easel, and misc. sketches"
(Washington Post, July 9, 1978). By that time, Sandy Spring had undergone the suburbanization that had changed the character of
much of Montgomery County. Even so, Sandy Spring's ties to its Quaker past remain strong, as evidenced by the seventy-three
buildings in the area that predate the Civil War (Map of Historic Sandy Spring).

In 1988, Tom and Cynthia Schneider bought Norwood. Cynthia, an expert Dutch art and a Georgetown University professor,

served as an ambassador to the Netherlands during the Clinton administration (Sandy Spring Museum, "Norwood vertical file).

The Schneiders undertook a year-long restoration of Norwood, which was overseen by preservation architect James Wollen.
.Workers removed the home's twentieth-century wallpaper and flooring, revealing much of Norwood's original features (Vaughn).

As a result of their efforts, the Schneiders received historic preservation awards from both the Sandy Spring Museum and

Montgomery County Historical Societies.

Chain of Title

1743:01[] Richard Snowden patents "Snowden's Manor Enlarged," including the future Sandy Spring area.

1746:! ! Richard Snowden to William Richardson.

1768:7 171 Joseph Richardson (most likely William Richardson's son) to Richard [ Thomas.

1799: Richard Thomas deeded the property to his grandson, Samuel Thomas III. (Liber H, Folio 401).

1813: Samuel Thomas III sold to Philip E. Thomas, his second cousin. (Liber Q, Folio 474).

1832: Philip Thomas to Issac Scott. (Liber BSS, Folio 94).
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